rison House, but the inscription states that it was Walter's house. As it was not Walter's house, and as we find from later information that some of the other statements on the tablet are incorrect, we feel obliged to mention these facts.

## DEACON JOHN HAYNES-1621-1697.

(6) Deacon John<sup>2</sup> Haynes was born in England in 1621. Before the year 1772, John<sup>4</sup> Haynes, a grandson of Deacon John,<sup>2</sup> wrote a genealogy of the Haynes and Noyes families from their landing in the Massachusetts Bay Colony, to his time. (See Chap. on same.) This begins: "Our grandfather, John Haynes, was born in Old England in the year 1621, and came over when he was sixteen years of age, one year into this country before his father, Walter Haynes, and so lived one year at Watertown with one Cousin Reed, viz: in the year 1637. The next year, 1638, came over our great-grandfathers, Walter Haynes and Peter Noyes." (The "Cousin Reed" is probably one of the "Reads" mentioned in the Will of Alice Hayne, 1620.") This old Chronicle does not state that John<sup>2</sup> Haynes returned to England, and came over in the "Confidence" in 1638, with his father and the rest of the family, but we know this to be the case from the ship's papers, which read "Walter Hayne etc.; Eliz. Hayne, his wife; Thomas Hayne, John Hayne, Josias Hayne, their sonnes under XVI yeares of age;" etc. The old Chronicle gives 1621 as the year of John's birth, while the papers of the "Confidence" read, "under sixteen yeares of age." This may have been carelessness on the part of writer of the ship's papers.

The Old Chronicle above referred to, tells us that Walter Haynes and the rest of the family on landing went to Watertown, Mass., and moved from there to Sudbury, either that same year (1638) or the next. The following facts are copied from the Sudbury Town Rec-

ords except where otherwise indicated.

The names Walter Hayne and John Hayne appear on the list of the original 54 Grantees of the town about 1638 or '39.

18 Sept. 1639. An additional grant of land was given to the town, and John Hayne received a share, his portion being 57 acres.

13 Oct. 1642 John Hayne married Dorothy Noyes, daughter of Peter Noyes. (See Chap. on Peter Noyes.) They had twelve children, who are mentioned in latter part of this chapter, in the reference to the will.

John probably lived with his father at the extreme northern part of the town, until he was married, and then he had a house of his own near the church. (See map.) After his father located on the west side of the river, John followed him. Walter was living in his new house in 1646 and it is very probable that John's house was built a year or two later, or about 1647-8. This was the house that was afterwards known as the "Haynes Garrison House," which we learn from the "Old Petition" and from Walter's will, and was the next house to the north of where Walter had located. (See map.)

